
 
 

15 November 2019 
 
 

Joint Staff Committee 
 

Date: 
 

25 November 2019 

Time: 
 

6.30 pm 

Venue: 
 

QEII Room, Shoreham Centre, Shoreham-by-Sea 

 
 

Adur District Council: Councillors Brian Boggis (Chairman), Andy McGregor and 
Lavinia O'Connor 
 
Worthing Borough Council: Councillors Keith Bickers, Paul Baker and Carl Walker 
 

 
 

Agenda 
Part A 
 
1. Substitute Members   
 
 Any substitute members should declare their substitution. 

 
2. Minutes   
 
 To approve the minutes of the Joint Staff Committee meeting held on 18 March 

2019, copies of which have been previously circulated. 
 

3. Declarations of Interest   
 
 Members and officers must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests in relation 

to any business on the agenda.  Declarations should also be made at any stage 
such an interest becomes apparent during the meeting.   
 
If in doubt contact the Legal or Democratic Services representative for this 
meeting. 
 
 

Public Document Pack



4. Public Question Time   
 
 To receive any questions from members of the public. 

 
(Note: Public Question Time will operate for a maximum of 30 minutes.) 
 

5. Items Raised under Urgency Provisions   
 
 To consider any items the Chairman of the meeting considers to be urgent. 

 
6. HR Policies - Out of Hours Policy  (Pages 1 - 22) 
 
 To consider the report by the Director for Digital and Resources, attached as Item 

6. 
 

7. Referral of Motion on Notice from Adur District Council  (Pages 23 - 28) 
 
 To consider the report by the Director for Communities, attached as Item 7. 

 
 

Part B - Not for Publication - Exempt Information Reports 
 
No items. 
 
 
 

Recording of this meeting  
 
The Council will be voice recording the meeting, including public question time. The 
recording will be available on the Council’s website as soon as practicable after the 
meeting.  The Council will not be recording any discussions in Part B of the agenda 
(where the press and public have been excluded). 
 

 

For Democratic Services enquiries relating 
to this meeting please contact: 

For Legal Services enquiries relating to 
this meeting please contact: 

Neil Terry  
Democratic Services Lead  
01903 221073 
neil.terry@adur-worthing.gov.uk  

Sarita Arthur-Crow 
Lawyer  
01903 221086 
sarita.arthur-crow@adur-worthing.gov.uk 

 
 



 

 

Joint Staff Committee 
25 November 2019 

Agenda Item 6 

 
 
HR Policies - Out of Hours Policy 
 
Report by the Director for Digital & Resources 
 
Executive Summary  
 

1. Purpose  
1.1     The report seeks approval of the Adur & Worthing Councils Out of 

Hours - Standby and Call Out Policy  
1.2     The Councils currently do not have a policy on the management and 

remuneration of their Out of Hours provision. 
1.3     The purpose of the policy is to ensure that the Councils have the 

capacity to respond to situations, events and urgent issues outside of 
working hours and for the limitations that this imposes on employees. 

1.4     The policy sets out the remuneration and expectations of those on an 
Out of Hours rota. 

 

2. Recommendation 
2.1        The Joint Staff Committee is recommended to approve the Out of 

Hours - Standby and Call Out Policy with an implementation date of 
1st January 2020. 

2.2        The Joint Staff Committee is asked to delegate authority to the Head 
of Human Resources (in consultation with the Chief Financial Officer 
and the Head of Legal Services, where relevant) in order to make 
minor and non-consequential amendments to the Policy at any time. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1

Agenda Item 6



3. Context 
3.1 The purpose of this new policy is to ensure that there is a fair and 

transparent approach to paying employees who carry out Out of Hours 
duties. 

3.2 The policy applies to all employees of both Adur and Worthing Councils 
that carry out Out of Hours duties. 

3.3 There are currently a number of informal arrangements in place to 
cover the Out of Hours provision with some staff being paid and some 
carrying out duties as a gesture of goodwill.  

 
4. Issues for consideration 

4.1 The current level of risk due to the Councils not having a policy and 
formal arrangements in place to ensure that the required Out of Hours 
provision is covered. 

4.2 The reputational and legislative risks of not having a formal Out of 
Hours provision and cover for the Adur and Worthing Communities. 

4.3 Within the policy there are 3 levels of remuneration for the Standby 
element of the payment. These are determined by the level of 
accountability/decision making and whether the employee would be 
expected to attend on site or not. 

 
5. Engagement and Communication 

5.1 Unison have been consulted with and they consulted with their 
members providing them with two weeks to provide any feedback. 

5.2 Following that period of consultation Unison agreed the policy on 7th 
November 2019. 

5.3 The policy has been shared and discussed with Heads of Service to 
obtain their views on the contents and affect on their services. 

 
6. Financial Implications 

6.1 The current cost of out of hours allowances is £54,000. The policy 
proposes a rationalisation of the current arrangements and the cost will 
be met from within the existing budgets.  

 
7. Legal Implications 

 
7.1 Section 112 Local Government Act 1972 provides the Council with the 

power to appoint staff on the terms and conditions that they consider 
fit. 

 

2



7.2 This Policy sets out the arrangements that will govern out of hours 
working. The Joint Staff Committee is the correct Committee to 
consider this Policy. 

Background Papers 
● Adur & Worthing Councils Out of Hours - Standby and Call Out Policy             

available at Appendix 1 
● Out of Hours Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) available at Appendix 2 

 
 

Officer Contact Details:-  
Heidi Christmas 
Head of Human Resources 
Worthing Town Hall 
01903 221183 
heidi.christmas@adur-worthing.gov.uk  

3



Sustainability & Risk Assessment 
 

 
1. Economic 
2.1 Matter considered and no issues identified. 
 
2. Social 
2.1 Social Value 
2.1.1 Positive impact due to the formal and consistent approach recommended to           

the provision of Out of Hours services to the Adur and Worthing communities. 
 
2.2 Equality Issues 
2.2.1 The Equality Impact Assessment for this policy is attached as Appendix 2. 
 
2.3 Community Safety Issues (Section 17) 
2.3 Matter considered and no issues identified. 
 
2.4 Human Rights Issues 
2.4 Matter considered and no issues identified. 
 
3. Environmental 
3.1 Matter considered and no issues identified. 
 
4. Governance 
4.1 Positive impact due to the formal and consistent approach recommended to           

the provision of Out of Hours services to the Adur and Worthing communities. 

4



 

  

 

OUT OF HOURS  
STANDBY AND CALL OUT  
POLICY & PROCEDURES  

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Version 1.5 
October 2019  
 

Page 0​ of ​12 

5



 
Contents ​                                                              Page 

1.0 Introduction and Purpose                              2 
2.0 Scope                                                            3 
3.0 Definitions                                                      3 

3.1 Regular standby                                   3 
3.2 Emergency Standby                             4 
3.3 Ad Hoc standby                                    4 

4.0 Standby Approvals                                        4 
5.0 Standby Payment Levels & Criteria              5 
6.0 Call Out                                                         7 
7.0 Administration                                               8  
8.0 Manager Responsibilities                              8 
9.0 Employee Responsibilities                            9 
10.0 Claiming Mileage                                         10 
11.0  Working time                                               10 
12.0  Risk Assessments                                       11 
13.0  Equipment and Tools                                   11 
14.0  Failure to Comply                                        12  
15.0  Policy Monitoring                                         12  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 1​ of ​12 

6



 
1. INTRODUCTION AND PURPOSE 

 
1.1 It is essential that the Councils have a structured Standby and Call Out              
arrangement in place to deal with a diverse variety of issues that can arise outside of                
normal working hours. 
 
This will enable the Councils to maintain services and respond to its statutory duties              
and responsibilities effectively and efficiently that due to their nature, cannot wait            
until the next working day. 
 
Where opportunities arise for Standby or Call Out then these will be offered equally              
to all employees in a team/section subject to appropriate relevant experience.  

 
1.2​ The purpose of this policy and procedure is to ensure: 

(a) The Councils have the capacity to respond to situations, events and urgent             
issues outside of working hours and for the limitations this imposes on staff.  

(b) Appropriate staff are available to provide standby cover. This policy stipulates            
under ​w​hat circumstances payments will be made and what the payments will be. 

(c) To compensate individuals who are inconvenienced for being at their employer’s            
disposal outside of working hours and for the limitations this imposes on them. This              
does not include ‘out of hours’ meetings eg. committee and councils meetings or             
working later than normal as the service may require.  

(d) Rates of standby are standardised across the Councils in recognition of the             
principle that employees’ own time outside of working hours is of equal value. 

(e) Work-life balance and the needs of the service, working time arrangements            
should avoid:  

● Short notice changes to rostered or expected patterns of work. 
● Excessive hours in any particular week. 
● Unnecessarily long roster periods. 
● Staff appearing on more than one standby rota.  

It is important that any issues arising from the practical application of this Policy are               
clarified by the relevant Head of Service as owners of this policy by amending the               
Policy with prior approval of the Head of Business Technical Services rather than             
leaving them open to interpretation by individual managers which could in turn, result             
in the policy being applied inconsistently​.  

 

Page 2​ of ​12 

7



 
 

2. SCOPE 

2.1 The Standby Payment and Call Out Policy will apply to employees up to and               
including Heads of Service (where applicable). It does not apply to employees on             
Chief Officer Terms and Conditions. These procedures apply to the periods when an             
employee, either as part of their contract of employment, or, at the Councils’             
discretion, are on standby to be available to attend a place of work outside of normal                
working hours​. 

2.2 Payment for hours worked if ‘called out’ are in accordance with the overtime              
provisions.  

2.3 It is an organisational decision as to which services require standby            
arrangements – the provision will therefore be removed if there is no longer a              
business need to provide out of hours cover or other arrangements are to be put in                
place, e.g. via third party. 

3​. ​DEFINITIONS  

3.1 A standby period will cover hours outside of normal working hours. Standby can              
be categorised as follows:  

3.1.1 ​ ​Regular Standby  

Arrangements for regular standby must be outlined at the point of recruitment and             
will be advised to the employee in writing setting out the terms and requirements of               
the standby provision and payment methods and outlined in the job description. 

(a) This is to provide cover outside of normal working hours. It will only operate               
where there is a consistent and sustained requirement to provide services outside of             
normal working hours. Being on standby will therefore be an established feature and             
requirement of the role and a contractual requirement.  

(b) In order to enable employees to make the necessary arrangements and to             
ensure that there is clarity of roles and responsibilities, the standby rota should be              
prepared as far as possible in advance. The contact numbers for the employees on              
the rota and the procedures for accessing tools, vehicles, entry into buildings etc.             
should be well established and known in advance. 

(c) Employees on standby will be required to ensure that they are available to carry               
out the duties and tasks required and which necessitate the employee being on             
standby or called out. It may impact on an employee’s social arrangements and             
necessitate an employee restricting their activities to those which will not           
compromise the requirement to respond quickly and effectively e.g. consumption of           

Page 3​ of ​12 

8



 
alcohol. The needs of the service will determine the requirement for a regular             
standby system and as such the need may cease from time to time. 

 ​3.2 Emergency Standby  

There may be requirement, at short notice, for employees to be available. For             
example, in response to severe weather conditions or to assist following a Civil             
Emergency or Business Continuity under the Civil Contingencies Act 2004, within the            
Borough/District being invoked. 

The unpredictable nature of the incident may require a rota to be drawn up at short                
notice and it is important that contact numbers for everyone expected to be working              
are up to date and available. 

3.​3​ ​Ad Hoc​ ​Standby  

To provide cover at specific times, for example, in supporting events, functions or             
being available during Bank Holidays, it should be possible for rotas to be drawn up               
in advance and for discussions to have taken place to ensure that roles and              
responsibilities are known and understood.   

4​.​ STANDBY APPROVALS  

Type of Standby  Approval Required  

Regular  Head of Service  

Emergency  Head of Service on Duty  

Ad Hoc  Head of Service  
 

Regular and ad hoc arrangements must be approved, in writing/via email (copied to 
Payroll Section) in advance of the standby period or arrangement. Emergency 
standby should also be approved in advance, however if  it was not possible at the 
time the approval should be given in writing/via email as soon as possible thereafter.  

In order to receive standby payments they must be approved in advance and will not 
be paid without this approval. 

5. STANDBY PAYMENTS 

5.1​ Payments will be made on a recurring basis (except Emergency Standby and Ad 
Hoc ) based on a set weekly amount incorporated into monthly pay. Payment for 
Emergency Standby periods will be made after the standby period has taken place 
due to the nature of the call out. The amount of the standby payment will be notified 

Page 4​ of ​12 

9



 
to the employee undertaking the Emergency Standby and will be based on the level 
of decision making set out below.  

5.2 ​The payment model is aligned to a combination of (a) frequency of standby and               
(b) the level of accountability/decision making. 

The criteria set out below ensures that the policy is applied consistently and fairly. 

Frequency & 
Decision making 
level 

Level 1 
 £40 per week 
Low level decision 
making / passing 
on request for 
service to 
appropriate 
provider 

Level 2  
£60 per week 
Lead coordination 
required but not 
required to attend 
on site OR 
Required to attend 
on site and make 
key decisions 

Level 3  
£100 per week 
Critical decision 
making needed 
more often than 
not, requiring 
attendance on site 
or ​coordinating 
resources off site 

 
Average of 10 
weeks per year (ie. 
1 in 5 or more rota) 
 

 
£400 

    (£40 per week) 
 

 
£600 

(£60 per week) 

 
£1,000 

(£100 per week) 

Annual cost ​ (based 
on one person being 
on standby at any one 
time)  

 
 

£2,080  
  

 
 

£3,120 

 
 

£5,200 

 

Level 1 – Clear course of action or referral to another person/provider. No immediate              
decision making or advice required. Payable where it is demonstrated that the            
employee is called at least once a week outside of working hours. The work is of a                 
nature that there would be a minimum impact on the employee’s time, they could              
carry a work mobile telephone and answer the query without disrupting their home             
life. Payment would be made for any call out in accordance with current             
enhancement provisions if required to attend work place. See 6.2.  

Level 2 ​– Required to resolve the issue/call and make judgements and decisions.             
Coordination of others/tasks – internal and external; may be required to attend on             
site. Some disruption to home-life caused by receiving telephone calls at home but             
the employee would not normally be expected to attend a place of  work.  

Level 3​ – Critical decision making/coordination of agencies/services, likely requiring 
attendance on site; emergency response and management of the 
incident/emergency duty cover. Requires specific experience, knowledge; 
management of higher risk. The employee is regularly called out throughout the night 

Page 5​ of ​12 

10



 
and at the weekend. This would have an impact on the employee’s home-life i.e. 
they would not be able to travel too far from a place of work or home. 

5.3 Those staff nominated to be Strategic Duty officers by the Councils’ Leadership              
team will receive a standby payment. 

5.4 Standby payments made under this procedure will be taken into account for the               
purposes of calculation of holiday allowance or purchased and are included for            
pensionable pay calculations.  

5.5​ ​Arrangements When Absent From Work  

If you are contracted to be on Standby you will not receive the Standby payments               
when you are on leave, sickness, maternity, paternity, adoption, unpaid leave or            
strike action as you are not available to be on standby. Manager’s see 8.2  

Please note that the granting of annual leave whilst on the Standby rota will be               
subject to the normal operational needs and the appropriate manager’s approval. 

5.6 ​Annual Review - In January each year, the Head of Service responsible for the                
service in which the rota operates will be required to undertake a review of the               
operation of the Standby rota and report to the Head of Business and Technical              
Services to enable any change to be effective by April that year. 

This review will need to:- 

a) assess the standby periods and duties performed in order to confirm the            
payment is within the correct category, ensuring it reflects genuine service           
needs; the expected standby has been worked and the payments remain           
relevant.  

b) consider any / all changes made to the number and grade of employees             
deployed on the rota and their continued relevance to the tasks and duties             
required to be performed. 

The Head of Business & Technical Services is to ensure the 3 set levels of               
remuneration are current, where changes are recommended to change levels of           
remuneration, supporting information/budgets must be presented to the Change         
Board for approval or rejection and any changes to be advised to the Group              
Accountant.  

5.7 ​Written Particulars of Employment – It must be stated that the employee will              
be required to participate in an out-of-hours service. It should also be stated that,              
“Every effort must be made to take annual leave at a time when you are not on                 
standby duty. However, where this is not possible you will be required to swap              
standby duties with a colleague”.  

Page 6​ of ​12 

11



 
6​. CALL OUT  

6.1 The standby payment covers, for example, requirement to undertake telephone           
calls whilst on standby and having related discussions. However, in addition to the             
standby payment, compensation for call out will be made under the following            
circumstances:  

● If, due to being on a standby duty rota, an employee is required to physically               
go on site or the place of work, or  

● The employee has been called out on an ad hoc basis, for example, to              
respond to an alarm call or to assist with the Councils’ Business Continuity             
plans or Emergency plan.  

● T​he ​Strategic Duty Officers (GOLD) and the Incident Manager (in most cases             
this will be the Safety & Resilience Manager) will on most occasions be             
making critical decisions and co-ordinating resources off site and may not be            
physically called out. They rarely attend a scene to avoid becoming embroiled            
in operational matters. They need to take the holistic overview. Such           
employees will be entitled to a call out payment (or time off in lieu) at the                
appropriate rate of pay as set out below.  

6.2 Payment for having to attend a place of work (or working from home or other                
location in the case of the ​Strategic Duty Officer (Gold) and Incident Managers will                 
receive a minimum payment of 2 hours overtime at the appropriate rate of pay per               
hour: 

● own rate of pay per hour for their own job.  
● a group job hourly rate may be set so everyone completing the same job              

receives the same amount.  

Employees will generally be called out to undertake their own job and will receive              
their own rate of pay for such work. If an employee is on a grade higher than the                  
grade of the job to be undertaken, that employee will receive the group job hourly               
rate.  

Where work continues beyond the initial 2 hour payment period, the employee will be              
paid for the number of hours worked at the appropriate rate. 

6.3​ Call Outs worked on a Bank and statutory Holidays will not attract any 
compensatory time off.  

The criteria set out below ensures that the policy is applied consistently and fairly:              
Overtime payments will be paid as set out below:  

● Monday to Saturday - Time and a half 
● Sundays and Public and Extra Statutory holidays  - Double time  

Page 7​ of ​12 

12



 
6.4 Travelling time only for the purposes of standby / call out and for the purpose of                 
calculating Overtime, travelling time should be included as hours worked.  

6.5 Logging calls​ – Employees must record all calls on the digital log in the Google 
drive. For each incident, a new log will be created from the template available on the 
Google Drive and sent to all interested parties. For full instructions see google drive 
4-1 Digital Log Sheet -Creating, Storing and Working On​. Failure to record an action 
or submit a nil return can result in standby payment being withheld for not following 
procedure.  

6.6​ ​Job Descriptions​ – It must be stated in all appropriate job descriptions that it is 
a requirement of the job to carry out Standby Duties.  

6.7 Person Specifications​ – It must be stated on all appropriate person 
specifications that the employee must be available to work out of hours in line with 
service requirements. 

7 ADMINISTRATION 

7.1​ The Standby Claim form for Emergency Standby and Ad Hoc should be 
completed on a monthly basis by employees, passed to their manager for 
authorisation and forwarded to Payroll for payment by the monthly deadline advised 
by Payroll. The Manager who authorises the stand-by allowance and associated 
overtime must be an Authorised signatory. This will ensure that payment is only 
made to those employees who have carried out this service. 

7.2​ Managers are responsible for sending the completed forms to Payroll for 
employees who are on sick leave, holiday, maternity, paternity, compassionate, 
unpaid , adoption leave or strike action when they are scheduled for standby duty 
with the date payment to stop and, if known / applicable the date to restart. See 5.6  

8. MANAGER RESPONSIBILITIES  

8.1 It is the line manager’s responsibility to ensure that standby rotas are covered by               
employees with the appropriate skills and knowledge and at the appropriate level, for             
example, it would not be appropriate for a senior manager to be on standby if the                
work required could be undertaken by a post that reports to the senior manager etc.               
It would also not be appropriate for an employee who is unlikely to have the               
knowledge or skills to deal with certain situations that may arise to be on a standby                
rota. 

 ​8.2​ ​The line manager must ensure that:  

● Standby rotas are prepared in advance of any standby period.  
● One telephone number is listed in the out of hours contact directory to contact 

the staff member or contractor on standby.  

Page 8​ of ​12 

13

https://drive.google.com/open?id=1D7RG4REfT8ZJ0pY6Zsft1W5Ub4L9vFpEH9Vh4RAD1Bs


 
● If a member of staff falls sick during a rota week they are on and can’t 

complete the  full week to advise payroll to pay the percentage they were on 
standby.  

● Risk assessments for the duties are up-to-date. 
● Lone working procedures set out by Corporate Safety are in place.  
● Staff and contractors are aware of postal addresses relating to the Councils’ 

customer of concern register.  
● The necessary approval has been given by the appropriate Head of Service.  
● Hours worked are in accordance with the Working Time Regulations, section 

11 (other than in exceptional circumstances).  
● Follow up on wellbeing and see that where necessary ongoing support is in 

place,  for example  Employee Assistance Programme, Mental Health First 
Aiders.  

● Review and sign off the digital log on the Google drive of their service calls 
and action.  

● Standby and call out will only operate where there is a consistent and 
sustained requirement to provide services outside of core hours.  

9. EMPLOYEE RESPONSIBILITIES  

9.0 ​Maintain a record of actions and decisions of any work carried out during a               
standby or call out on the digital log on the Google drive. See 6.5 

9.1​ Employees are on standby on the basis that they will be expected to deal with 
incidents that may arise within the scope of their job role and/or competency and 
therefore must not take medication (that could impact on their ability to respond to a 
call out) or consume alcohol whilst on a standby shift.  

9.2 An employee is expected to be able to arrive within a reasonable time of being                
called out. This time will be set according to the needs of each service. An employee                
may leave their home, but must still remain contactable and have transport available             
to enable a return to a place of work or location within a reasonable period.  

9.3 An employee must contact their manager as soon as possible if they become ill               
or are unable to comply with their responsibilities during a period of standby. This will               
enable the manager to make alternative arrangements.  

9.4 Personal arrangements should not ordinarily be made if this prevents an            
employee from undertaking their standby cover. However, it is accepted that there            
may be circumstances arise that cannot be changed. If this arises, the employee             
should request leave as soon as possible from their manager. Leave may not be              
approved unless and until suitable cover arrangements are made. An individual           
should not therefore make any arrangements relating to annual leave prior to            
receiving approval of the leave dates requested. 

Page 9​ of ​12 

14



 
9.5 If the Strategic Duty Officer (Gold) is not able to cover the rota due to ​illness or                  
unexpected absence they must contact the Safety and Resilience Manager.  

10. CLAIMING FOR MILEAGE 

10.1 If mileage is incurred in travelling to a place of work following a call out, it                 
should be claimed in accordance with the procedure for claiming travel or mileage. If,              
following a call out an employee returns directly home, they would be entitled to              
claim mileage for this journey. In circumstances where the call out occurs within 3              
hours of normal starting time and as a result the employee remains at the place of                
work and enters normal working hours, there is no entitlement to claim mileage for              
the return journey home. 

Note​: If an Adur or Worthing Council vehicle has been used to get to and from a call                  
out, there is no entitlement to claim mileage. 

11. WORKING TIME REGULATIONS  

11.1 The Working Time Regulations state that it is necessary for an employee to              
have an uninterrupted break of 11 hours between periods of work. Standby time is              
not ‘working time’ within the definition of Working Time Regulations. Only time for             
call-out (and travelling to and from the location) applies for this purpose. However,             
exceptions can be made for emergencies that may occur and emergency call-outs            
would fall into this category provided that the rest ​period could be taken at a later                
date (a weekend would count for this purpose). 

11.2 It is important for managers who operate a call out system in their area to                
monitor and regularly review:  

● The frequency and length of call-outs.  
● The extent of planned and unplanned out of hours worked in order to ensure              

that no employee is being required to undertake additional work which may be             
detrimental to their health and wellbeing. 

● Fairness in the application of the Standby and Callout Policy and Procedures. 

11.3 If an employee is required to attend an emergency call out situation then the               
ability of the employee to attend for work on the following day must be assessed.  

The employee’s line manager should determine any appropriate time off in lieu to             
compensate for this. The out of hours time must be managed and not allowed to               
accumulate as this will impact on the working day provision.  

The compensatory rest period may fall on a working or non-working day. If it falls on                
a non-working day, staff do not accrue any additional compensatory rest. 

Page 10​ of ​12 

15



 
Compensatory rest must be taken at a time when rotas and the service allow,              
subject to the agreement of the line manager. 

See table for recommended minimum compensatory rest periods :- 

After a period of callout, employee      
is home/complete: 

Time the employee must be in work at 
the latest : 

Before midnight Normal start time next day  

Between midnight and 3.00am 3 hours after normal start time  

Between 3.00am and normal start time  5 hours after normal start time  
 

12. RISK ASSESSMENTS  

12.1 In the case of employees called out to carry out their substantive duties it is                
expected that managers would already have risk assessments in place for such            
duties. Although some call outs may be of an unpredictable nature, for the majority of               
situations it should be possible for managers to already have identified potential risks             
and have up-to-date risk assessments in place ie. lone working. Employees must            
have access to the risk assessments and must have received appropriate training in             
connection with any potential risks.  

12.2 Employees should be aware of any potential risks and hazards that could arise              
while dealing with a call out. For example, an employee being called out due to a                
leaking roof, although not expected to repair the roof could be at risk due to slips or                 
falls due to wet floor surfaces, personal injury due to a ceiling collapse or              
electrocution from water damaged electrical appliances. 

13. EQUIPMENT AND TOOLS  

13.1 Managers and employees on standby must have the relevant equipment and            
tools available in the event of a call out. 

 

14.  FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH OR ABUSE OF THE STANDBY SYSTEM  

14.1 Failure to comply with any of the principles within this policy may result in the                
claim for standby allowance or call out being disallowed and may result in             
disciplinary action.  

 

Page 11​ of ​12 

16



 
15. POLICY IMPLEMENTATION & MONITORING  

15.1 The Head of Business & Technical Services will monitor the application of this              
policy and has discretion to review it at any time through the appropriate consultation              
mechanisms.  

The Facilities Officer is to assist with the provision of an out of hours emergency               
service and call out arrangements for intruder alarms, fire alarms and           
access/security control systems within designated council properties.  

15.2 Responsibility for the implementation, monitoring and development of this policy           
lies with each Head of Service. Day to day operation of the policy is the responsibility                
of nominated officers who will ensure that this policy is adhered to. The Head of               
Business & Technical Services owns this document.  

ENDS 

 

Date policy agreed with Unison: 7th November 2019 
Date agreed by Joint Staff Committee: 

Date policy formally adopted:  
Date for review: 3 years from formal adoption of policy:  

Page 12​ of ​12 

17



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Equality Impact Assessment – 
Out of Hours, Standby and Call 

Out Policy 
  

19



 

Equalities Impact Assessment   

 
Name of project/policy/strategy (hereafter referred to as “initiative”): 
 
Out of Hours (OOH), Standby and Call Out Policy  
 
 
 
Provide a brief summary (bullet points) of the aims of the initiative and main              
activities: 
 
To create an Out of Hours Policy and agreed remuneration amounts to:  

● ensure that the Councils’ are providing an efficient and economical OOH 
service 

● ensure that staff are remunerated fairly and transparently 
● to provide OOH services that are either a statutory requirement or could have 

reputation consequences for the Councils if they are not provided 
 
 
Project Officer : Nick Sarjeant  Date :  October 2019 
 
Stage 1: ‘Screening’ 
This stage establishes whether a proposed initiative will have an impact on  
equality groups, (age, disability, gender, race, religion/belief, sexual orientation), 
or whether it is “equality neutral” (i.e. have no effect either positive or negative).  
So for example in the case of gender impact, consider whether men and  
women are affected differently. 
 
 
Q.1. ​Who will benefit from this initiative? Is there likely to be a positive impact               
on specific equality groups (whether or not they are intended beneficiaries),           
and if so, how? ​Or is it clear at this stage that it will be equality “neutral”? i.e.                  
will have no particular effect on any group. 
 
The policy allows the organisation to manage the OOH provision in a fair and              
consistent way.  
 
Currently there are inconsistent arrangements for OOH cover across the          
organisation with many people carrying out OOH responsibilities on the basis of            
goodwill and some receiving no remuneration at all. 
 

The ultimate beneficiaries of the new policy are the residents of Adur & Worthing –               
as they will receive a more structured and formal OOH provision. 

 

20



 

The policy will be applied consistently irrespective of any protected characteristic. 

 
 
 
 
Q.2. ​Is there likely to be an adverse impact on one or more equality group as a                 
result of this initiative? If so, who may be affected and why? ​Or is it clear at                 
this stage that it will be equality “neutral”? 
 
The policy will not have an adverse impact on any one or more equality group. 
 
 
 
 
Q.3. ​Is the impact of the initiative - whether positive or negative - significant              
enough to warrant a more detailed assessment (Stage 2 - see guidance)? If             
not, will there be monitoring and review to assess the impact over a period of               
time? Briefly (bullet points) give reasons for your answer and any steps you             
are taking to address particular issues, including any consultation with staff or            
external groups/agencies. 
 
It is not considered necessary to have a more detailed assessment. The policy is not               
considered to have a negative impact on any equality group. The policy will be              
reviewed in three years time and at this point, the equality impact assessment will              
also be reviewed. 
 
 
 

21



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Joint Staff Committee 
25 November 2019 

Agenda Item 7 

 
Ward(s) Affected: All Adur 

 
Referral of Motion on Notice from Adur District Council 
 
Report by the Director for Communities 
 
 

1. Purpose  
 
1.1. The report sets out a motion (attached as Appendix 1) referred from 

the meeting of Adur District Council on the 31 October 2019.  
 

1.2. Members of the Joint Staff committee are asked to consider and 
determine the Motion. 

  

 

2. Recommendations 
 
That the Joint Staff Committee:-  

 
2.1. supports the motion as set out in Appendix 1 of the report; or, 

 
2.2. requests that additional information be provided in order for the 

motion to be determined; or,  
 

2.3. does not support the motion as set out in Appendix 1 of the report.  

 
 
 
 
 

23

Agenda Item 7



3. Context 
 
3.1 At its meeting on the 31 October 2019, Adur District Council received a              

motion from Councillor Lavinia O’Connor, seconded by Councillor        
Catherine Arnold, which is attached as Appendix 1. 

 
3.2 The motion submitted to Council contained subject matter that is within the             

remit of the Joint Staff Committee, as defined in para 14.4.3 of the             
Council’s Procedure Rules. Therefore, it was moved and seconded,         
immediately noted by the Council and referred without debate to the Joint            
Staff Committee for consideration and determination.  

 
3.3 Where a motion has been referred by Full Council to the Joint Staff             

Committee, the mover, or the seconder in the absence of the mover, shall             
be entitled to attend the relevant meeting of the Committee and explain the             
motion. Councillor Lavinia O’Connor has been made aware that the motion           
has been referred to this Committee.  

 
4. Issues for consideration 

 
4.1 The Joint Staff Committee is required to consider and determine the motion 

as set out in Appendix 1.  
 
4.2 Members are asked to consider whether they are in possession of sufficient            

information in order to determine the motion. If additional information is           
required, the Committee are asked to request that Officers prepare a           
further report, on the substantive issues, to be presented at a future            
meeting of the Joint Staff Committee. 

 
5. Financial Implications 

 
5.1 The current draft budget for 2020/21 contains a 2% provision for pay 

awards plus an allowance for any increments that staff may be eligible for. 
If pay awards are higher than this amount, the costs to the Council per 1% 
additional increase are estimated to be: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

24



 Increase 
per 1% pay 

award 
£’000 

Increase for an 
8% additional 

pay award 
£’000 

Adur - General Fund 102 816 

Housing Revenue Account 22 132 

Worthing 171 1,368 
 
5.2 The proposed 10% uplift would cost both Council’s substantial additional 

sums. However at the same time it is unlikely that the Council will receive 
any additional funding given that MHCLG have recently indicated an overall 
increase in funding of 1.7% for 2020/21. 

 
5.3 Members should also be aware that the increases to tenants rents within 

the Housing Revenue Account are limited to a 2.7% increase for 2020/21. 
 
5.4   Consequently there may be significant direct financial implications in future 

depending on the course of action the Joint Staff Committee wishes to take. 
 

6. Legal Implications 
 

6.1 Rules concerning motions are set out in the Council’s Constitution under 
paragraph 14 of the Council’s Procedure Rules.  

 
 
Background Papers 
Motion to Adur District Council on 31 October 2019 
 
 
 
Officer Contact Details:-  
Neil Terry 
Democratic Services Lead  
01903 221073 
neil.terry@adur-worthing.gov.uk   

25

http://neil.terry@adur-worthing.gov.uk/


Appendix 1 
 
Motion to Adur District Council on 31 October 2019 
 

This council notes 

● Government has endured central government funding cuts of nearly 50%          
since 2010.  

● Between 2010 and 2020, councils will have lost 60p out of every £1 they have               
received from central government. 

● The 2019 LGA survey of council finances found that 1 in 3 councils fear they               
will run out of funding to provide even their statutory, legal duties by 2022/23.              
This number rises to almost two thirds of councils by 2024/2025 or later. 

● The LGA estimates councils will face a funding gap of £8 billion by 2025.  
● Faced with these cuts from central government, the local government          

workforce has endured years of pay restraint with the majority of pay points             
losing 22 percent of their value since 2009/10.  

● At the same time as seeing their pay go down in real terms, workers              
experience ever increasing workloads and persistent job insecurity. Across         
the UK, an estimated 876,000 jobs have been lost in local government since             
June 2010 – a reduction of 30 per cent. Local government has arguably been              
hit by more severe job losses than any other part of the public sector.  

● There has been a disproportionate impact on women, with women making up            
more than three quarters of the local government workforce. 

 

This council believes 

● Our workers are public service super heroes. They keep our communities           
clean, look after those in need and keep our towns and cities running. 

● Without the professionalism and dedication of our staff, the council services           
our residents rely on would not be deliverable. 

● Government funding has been cut to the extent that a proper pay rise could              
result in a reduction in local government services. 

● The government needs to take responsibility and fully fund increases in pay; it             
should not put the burden on local authorities whose funding has been cut to              
the bone. 

  

 

 

26



This council resolves to 

● Support the pay claim submitted by GMB UNISON and Unite on behalf of             
council and school workers for a £10 per hour minimum wage and a 10              
percent uplift across all other pay points in 2020/21. 

● Call on the Local Government Association to make urgent representations to           
central government to fund the NJC pay claim 

● Write to the Chancellor and Secretary of State to call for a pay increase for               
local government workers to be funded with new money from central           
government.  

● Meet with local NJC union representatives to convey support for the pay            
claim.  

● Encourage all local government workers to join a union. 

 
 
Proposed by Councillor Lavinia O’Connor 
Seconded by Councillor Catherine Arnold 
 

27



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 HR Policies - Out of Hours Policy
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	7 Referral of Motion on Notice from Adur District Council

